. Excellence
%, g in Education
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Greg J. Florio, Ed.D.
TO: CREC Council and Superintendents

FROM: GregJ. Florio, Ed.D.
DATE: March 9, 2017

CREC Board Meeting

March 15, 2017 RSVP to Maureen DePierro
11:30 AM - 2:00 PM (860)240-6610 or
CREC Central mdepierro@crec.org

Rooms 101 & 102
111 Charter Oak Avenue
Hartford, CT 06106

I. CALL TO ORDER AND APPROVE MINUTES
A. February 15, 2017 Council Meeting

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

III. CONSENT AGENDA
A. General [tem
1) CT SDE Addendum - Child Nutrition (Attachment A)

B. 2017-2018 Continuing Programs
1) Regional Fingerprinting (Attachment B)
2) CREC Wide Area Network (Attachment C)
3) Copy Center (Attachment D)
4) Central Office Facility Cost Center (Attachment E)

IV. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT (Handouts)
A. Review of Handouts
B. 2017-18 Hartford Resident Open Choice Applications
C. Total RSCO Partner Magnet School Applications from CREC Member Town Residents

V. COUNCIL CHAIR’S REPORT

VI. DELIBERATED ACTION
A. New Business
1) Policies —(Attachment F)
The following policies are presented by the Policy Committee for a second reading:

Revised Policy — 5144 Students: Discipline
Retire Policy and Regulation 5114 Suspension and Expulsion Due Process
Retire Policy 5131 Conduct
Retire Policy 5131.1 Bus Conduct
Retire Policy 5131.2 Assault
Retire Policy 5131.21 Terroristic Acts
Retire Policy 5131.8 Qut of School Misconduct
Retire Policy 5144.3 Discipline of Students with Disabilities

111 Charter Oak Avenue, Hartford, CT 06106 B 860-524-4063 B dflorio@crec.org B www.crec.org



Excellence
in Education

= CREC

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Greg J. Florio, EA.D.

Revised Policy - 4112.5 Personnel: Security Check/Fingerprinting
Revised Policy — 4112.51 Personnel: Reference and Background Checks
Revised Policy — 6142 Instruction: Basic Instructional Program

Recommended Action: Approval by CREC Council

2) Executive Session
a. Personnel — Approval of Teachers Contract

B. 0Old Business -

VII. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE
A. Patrice McCarthy — CABE
B. Pete Smith — Rome, Smith & Lutz
VIII. REPORTS
A. Financial Report (Attachment G)
B. Leadership Budget 2017-2018 (Attachment H)
IX. COUNCIL COMMENTS

X. ADUJOURNMENT

*Next Meeting Date — April 19, 2017

111 Charter Oak Avenue, Hartford, CT06106 B 860-524-4063 ®m dflorio@crec.org B www.crec.org



nm CREC &5,

CREC BOARD
MEETING MINUTES
February 15, 2017
COUNCIL CREC
Don Harris, Bloomfield, Chair Greg Florio
Kristen Picard-Wambolt, Ellington, Vice Chair Sandy Cruz Serrano
David Joy, South Windsor, Secretary/Treasurer Tim Nee
Jackie Blea, Avon Dina Crowl
Joseph Scheideler, Canton Regina Terrell
Stephanie Watkins, East Hartford Deborah Richards
Jeremy Grieveson, Glastonbury Jeff Ivory
Michael Brescia, Hartford Aura Alvarado
Becky Tyrrell, Plainville Sarah Vocca
John Vecchitto, Region 10 Mason Thrall
Lydia Tedone, Simsbury David Daye
Terry Lombardi, Southington Deb Borrero
Jeanne Gee, Suffield
Linda Gessay, Vernon Guests
Cheryl Greenberg, West Hartford Patrice McCarthy, CABE

Pete Smith, Rome, Smith and Lutz

Towns not represented Berlin, Bolton, Bristol, Cromwell, East Granby, East Windsor, Enfield, Farmington,
Granby, Hartland, Manchester, New Britain, New Hartford, Newington, Portland, Rocky Hill, Somers,
Windsor, and Windsor Locks

I. CALL TO ORDER AND APPROVE MINUTES
Council Chair, Don Harris, called the meeting to order at 11:33 AM
A. November 16, 2016 Council Meeting

MOTION: Motion to approve the November 16, 2016 minutes made by Cheryl Greenberg and seconded by Bobby
Granato passed unanimously.

B. January 18, 2017 Council Meeting

MOTION: Motion to approve the January 18, 2017 minutes made by Jeremy Grieveson and seconded by Cheryl
Greenberg passed unanimously

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
A. Ellen Retelle — Tamika Thurston OIC Award

III. CONSENT AGENDA
A. General Item

MOTION: Motion to approve the Consent Agenda made by David Joy and seconded by Lydia Tedone passed
unanimously.

111 Charter Oak Avenue, Hartford, CT06106 B 860-524-4063 M gfloric@crec.org B  www.crec.org



Excellence
in EAucation

s CREC

IV. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
A. Review of Handouts — Executive Director, Greg Florio, Ed.D. welcomed the Council and guests
and thanked them for their participation. Dr. Florio began the report with reviewing the blue

folder
V. COUNCIL CHAIR'S REPORT

VI. DELIBERATED ACTION
A. New Business (Attachment C) Presented. No action taken, voting will take place at the March 15,
2017 meeting.
1) Policies - First Reading:

a. Revised Policy - 5114 Students: Discipline
i. Retire Policy and Regulation 5114 Suspension and Expulsion Due Process
ii. Retire Policy 5131 Conduct
iii. Retire Policy 5131.1 Bus Conduct
iv. Retire Policy 5131.2 Assault
v. Retire Policy 5131.21 Terroristic Acts
vi. Retire Policy 5131.8 Out of School Misconduct
vii. Retire Policy 5144.3 Discipline of Students with Disabilities

b. Revised Policy — 4112.5 Personnel: Security Check/Fingerprinting

c. Revised Policy _ 4112.51 Personnel: Reference and Background Checks

d. Revised Policy — 6142 Instruction: Basic Instructional Program

VIL. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE
A. Patrice McCarthy of CABE, presented legislative updates to the Council

B. Pete Smith, Rome of Smith & Lutz, presented legislative updates to the Council

VIII. REPORTS
A. Financial Report - Presented

IX. COUNCIL COMMENTS
X. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Motion made by John Vecchitto and seconded by Kristen Picard-Wambolt passed unanimously to
adjourn the Council Meeting at 1:11 PM

*Next Meeting Date — March 15, 2017

111 Charter Oak Avenue, Hartford, CT 06106 B 860-524-4063 ™ dflorio@crec.org B www.crec.org
























Hartford Resident - Open Choice Applications

Suburban District Name 1* Choice 1" Choice o o 1 5" Total1:Y17~
SY16-17 SY17-18 | SY17-18 SY17-18 | SY17-18 | Sy17-18

Avon School District 100 118 103 41 21 14 297
Berlin School District 60 40 45 51 64 79 279
Bolton School District 43 16 17 12 1:2 16 73
Canton School District 20 21 10 30 21 15 97
Cromwell School District 70 a5 22 46 27 22 212
East Granby School District 9 10 18 17 25 30 100
East Windsor School District 93 77 84 50 15 8 234
Ellington School District 11 27 17 22 30 25 121
Enfield School District 89 90 34 41 29 17 211
Farmington School District 128 156 126 88 62 28 460
Glastonbury School District 117 93 78 67 28 14 280
Granby School District 26 34 30 31 24 22 141
Newington School District 148 161 270 199 72 32 734
Plainville School District 30 34 49 28 28 28 167
Portland School District 2 6 3 9 13 7 38
Rocky Hill School District 90 36 62 33 23 11 165
Simsbury School District 64 61 110 61 24 12 268
Somers School District 10 3 0 10 10 14 37
Southington School District 16 16 17 18 27 27 105
South Windsor School District 143 136 104 36 26 5 307
Suffield School District 20 18 15 15 20 14 82
Tolland School District NA 0 6 3 nji 5 23
West Hartford School District 827 817 176 85 33 25 1136
Wethersfield School District 407 388 263 137 68 37 893
Windsor Locks School District 175 130 56 60 19 17 277
Total: 2,698 2,583 1,715 1,188 732 519 6,737




Total RSCO Partner Magnet School Applications from CREC Member Town Residents

Resident Town # Applicants Participation Rate # Applicants Participation Rate
For SY17-18* For SY17-18** For SY16-17 For SY16-17

AVON 202 3.76 162 313
BERLIN 96 4.23 110 4.34
BLOOMFIELD 550 29.04 608 30.06
BOLTON 25 2.78 21 4,47
BRISTOL 335 3.93 346 4.03
BURLINGTON 39 2.2 66 3.2
CANTON 75 3.91 68 3.57
CROMWELL 147 5.41 166 5.61
EAST GRANBY 72 5.88 70 5.99
EAST HARTFORD 1,836 19.38 1,972 18.84
EAST WINDSOR 176 13.34 188 12.84
ELLINGTON 179 4.59 193 4.82
ENFIELD 355 6.82 333 £:42
FARMINGTON 170 2.87 176 2.97
GLASTONBURY 355 3.97 345 4.22
GRANBY 75 39 81 4.21
HARTFORD 5,919 40.09 6,145 38.19
HARTLAND 6 1.5 8 3.3
HARWINTON 8 1.6 8 1.31
MANCHESTER 1,603 15.28 1,539 13.81
NEW BRITAIN 1,514 13.22 1,630 13.28
NEW HARTFORD 25 3.59 40 3.69
NEWINGTON 297 5 299 5.78
PLAINVILLE 73 3.23 94 3.83
PORTLAND 78 5.98 64 5.47
ROCKY HILL 504 7.44 457 8.12
SIMSBURY 190 3.4 210 3.71
SOMERS 29 2.4 34 2.59
SOUTH WINDSOR 368 5.27 379 5.7
SOUTHINGTON 156 3.38 193 3.58
SUFFIELD 75 1.98 68 2.53
VERNON 354 9.32 341 10.08
WEST HARTFORD 603 4.7 675 5.01
WETHERSFIELD 380 8.36 457 8.99
WINDSOR 662 16.92 77 17.22
WINDSOR LOCKS 158 8.68 198 7.15

*Note: Only active, complete, on-time applications to date.

**Final participation rates are determined based on 10/1/16 PSIS data.




CREC
Council Meeting 3/15/2017

Attachment F

The following policies are presented by the Policy Committee for a second reading:

Revised Policy - 5144 Students: Discipline

Retire Policy and Regulation 5114 Suspension and Expulsion Due Process

Retire Policy 5131 Conduct

Retire Policy 5131.1 Bus Conduct

Retire Policy 5131.2 Assault

Retire Policy 5131.21 Terroristic Acts

Retire Policy 5131.8 Out of School Misconduct

Retire Policy 5144.3 Discipline of Students with Disabilities
Revised Policy — 4112.5 Personnel: Security Check/Fingerprinting
Revised Policy — 4112.5] Personnel: Reference and Background Checks
Revised Policy — 6142 Instruction: Basic Instructional Program

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approval by CREC Council
The following policies are presented by the Policy Committee for a first reading:

None

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
No action at this time.

The Policy Committee has met, reviewed and developed/revised policy as needed with
the Director of Student Services, Deborah Richards. Members of the Policy Committee
include: Sharon Braverman, Cheryl Greenberg, Kristin Picard-Wambolt, Lydia Tedone,
Christopher Wilson, and Helen Apostolides, CREC’s Policy Consultant.

Note: To ease the reading of proposed changes in policy, all old language to be deleted is
printed in red/strikethrough. All new language is printed in blue and underscored.
Policies submitted for first reading are printed on buff colored paper, and policies
submitted for second reading and adoption are printed on white paper.



PROPOSED REVISED POLICY 5144

Students
Discipline
I. Policy Statement

The CREC Council believes that good student behavior in a school is extremely important in
creating the kind of educational environment in which students will be able to realize their greatest
opportunities for growth. Good discipline habits assume consideration for the rights and privileges
of others, cooperation with all personnel in the school community, basic self-respect as well as
respect for real and personal property, pride in one’s work and achievement within one’s ability.

The development of good discipline practices is an e#-on-going interactive process that begins early
in a child's life and continues throughout his‘her life. The school/program becomes a critical part of
this process because it has the responsibility efto teach and guiding-guide ehildren-students toward
achieving—and—ineuleatingachieve good self discipline. Each school/program will develop
expectations that affirm positive behavioral outcomes for students and align practices around these
expectations. Each school/program will engage the parents/guardians and community members in
the development of these practices. School and the-home must work together in an effort to help
and guide children toward achieving good self-discipline.

Students will be taught behavioral expectations as part of the school curriculum in all grades and all
CREC schools and programs will have a scientifically research-based model of positive behavioral

supports.

The purpose of this Discipline Policy is to encourage accountability for ene's-students’ behavior and
to assist students-them in-to recognizing recognize and leaming-the-proper decisions whieh-will-lead
to—tearning—to-—so _they can become an-independent and productive members of our democratic
society.

In applying reasonable disciplinary measures, administrators and staff are encouraged to use their
expertise and knowledge of individual students in light of the facts and circumstances
accompanying acts or incidents in question. Such measures may involve, but are not limited to,
removal, suspension, or recommendation for expulsion. Whatever measure is employed, the

discipline must always be fair and dignified.

II. Scope of this Policy

Conduct on School Grounds or at a School-Sponsored Activity




5114

Students may be disciplined for conduct on school grounds or at any school-sponsored activity that
endangers persons or property, is seriously disruptive of the educational process, or violates a
publicized CREC policy.

Conduct off School Grounds:

Students may be disciplined for conduct off school grounds if such conduct is seriously disruptive
of the educational process and violative of a publicized CREC policy. In making a determination as
to whether such conduct is seriously disruptive of the educational process, the Administration and
the Council may consider, but such consideration shall not be limited to, the following factors: (1)
whether the incident occurred within close proximity of a school; (2) whether other students from
the school were involved or whether there was any gang involvement; (3) whether the conduct
involved violence, threats of violence, or the unlawful use of a weapon, as defined in section Conn.
Gen. Stat. § 29-38, and whether any injuries occurred; and (4) whether the conduct involved the use
of alcohol.

In making a determination as to whether such conduct is seriously disruptive of the educational
process, the Administration and/or the Council may also consider whether such off-campus conduct
involved the illegal use of drugs.

III.  Expulsion

Expulsion - means an exclusion from school privileges for more than ten (10) consecutive school
days and shall be deemed to include, but not be limited to, exclusion from the school to which such
student was assigned at the time such disciplinary action was taken, provided such exclusion shall
not extend beyond a period of one (1) calendar year. All expulsions are handled by the home school
district.

A The CREC Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee shall recommend expulsion
proceedings to sending districts in all cases involving any of the following students:

1) a preschool student who was in possession of a firearm, as defined in 18 USC 921, on
or off school grounds or at a preschool program-sponsored event; or

2) a student in grades Kindergarten to twelve on school grounds or at a school-sponsored activity
who, (a) was in possession of a firearm, as defined in 18 USC 921, or deadly weapon,
dangerous instrument or martial arts weapon, as defined in C.G.S 53a-3; or (b) off
school grounds, possessed a firearm or possessed and used such a firearm, instrument or
weapon in the commission of a crime; or (¢) on or off school grounds, offered for sale or
distribution a controlled substance, as defined in C.G.S 21a-240,
whose manufacture, distribution, sale, prescription, dispensing, transporting or
possessing with intent to sell or dispense, offering, or administering is subject to
criminal penalties under C.G.S. 21a-277 and 21a-278; or

3) a student in grades three to twelve, on school grounds or at a school-sponsored
activity has engaged in conduct that endangers persons or property, is seriously
Page 2 0of 13



5144

disruptive of the educational process or is violative of a publicized school policy; or, off
school grounds has engaged in conduct that is seriously disruptive of the educational
process and is violative of a publicized school policy

The CREC Superintendent of Schools shall forward the recommendation to the sending LEA, if
determined to be necessary and appropriate.

If the sending LEA declines to conduct an expulsion hearing per the CREC Superintendent of
Schools recommendation, CREC shall do so, in accordance with C.G.S. 10-233d.

CREC’s Executive Director or his’her designee shall create administrative regulations regarding
student discipline in accordance with this policy.

Page 3 of 13



Page 4 0of 13



Page 50f13



.

Page 6 of 13



|

Page 7 0f 13






Page 9 0of 13



Page 10 0of 13



.

Page 11 0f 13



Page 12 0f 13



(

Sty
Stuidents

Legal Reference:

Connecticut General Statutes

4-177-4-180. Contested cases. Notice. Record.
10-233a-10-233¢. Suspension and expulsion of students.
10-233f In-School suspension of pupils.

Honig v. Doe. (United States Supreme Court 1988)

P.A. 13-173. An Act Concerning Childhood Obesity and Exercise in

Public Schools)

P.A. 15-96. An Act Concerning Out-of-School Suspensions and

Policy adopted:
Revised:
Revised:

Expulsions for Students in Preschool and Grades Kindergarten to Two

P.A. 16-147. An Act Concerning the Recommendations of the Juvenile
Justice Policy and Oversight Committee.

June 18, 2003 CAPITOL REGION EDUCATION COUNCIL
June 20, 2007 Hartford, Connecticut

Page 13 0f 13



| PROPOSED REVISED POLICY 4112.5
4212.5

Personnel — Certified/Non-Certified

Security Check/Fingerprinting

| Each applicant for a position within the Capitol Region Education Council--_shall be asked whether
he/she has ever been convicted of a crime and whether there are any criminal charges pending
| against him/her—at-the-time-ofapphieation. FEach person hired by the Capitol Region Education
Council’s school system, shall be required to submit to state and national criminal record checks
within thirty days of the date of employment. Each worker placed within a school under a public
assistance employment program: or placed in a nonpaid. noncertified position completing
preparation requirements for the issuance of an educator certificate: who performs a service

involving direct student contact shall be required to submit to state and national criminal history

records checks within thirty davs from the date such worker begins to perform such service.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes

10-221d Criminal history records checks of school personnel. Fingerprinting.
Termination or dismisseddismissal, as amended by P.A. 16-67. An Act
Concerning the Disclosure of Certain Education Personnel Records.
Criminal Penalties for Threatening in Educational Settings and the Exclusion
of a Minor’s name from Summary Process Complaints.

Policy adopted: August 16, 1995 CAPITOL REGION EDUCATION COUNCIL
Policy readopted: September 17, 2003 Hartford, Connecticut
| Policy revised:

Page 1 of 1



PROPOSED REVISED POLICY 4112.51
4212.51

Personnel -- Certified/Non-Certified

Reference and Background Checks

CREC believes that it is critical that references on applicants be checked and a background check
be completed prior to an offer of employment. The administration, therefore, is directed to
require all applicants to submit all documentation required by law: and to review fully, as

requ1red bv law such documentatmn mak&féeeﬂmemeéweeéwﬁaﬂ}keﬂeﬂ—te»eeﬂ%&e&ﬁﬂ

itm—emp}emeﬁi—pnor to an offer of employment Rerefeﬂees—s-heu}d—be—eheeked—wﬁh—pm

The Executive Director or his/her designee is directed to develop guidelines pestainingte-thefor
checking of applicant references and background.

(cf. 5125 — Student Records)

Legal References: Connecticut General Statutes
1-200 through 1-241 of the Freedom of Information Act.
5-193 through 5-269 -State Personnel Act

10-151¢ Records of teacher performance and evaluation not public
records.

Federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (section 438 of
the General Education Provisions Act, as amended, added by section 513 of
P.L. 93-568, codified at 20 U.S.C. 1232g).

Dept. of Educ. 34 C.F.R. Part 99 (May 9, 1980 45 FR 30802) regs.
implementing FERPA enacted as part of 438 of General Educ. provisions act
(20 U.S.C. 1232g)-parent and student privacy and other rights with respect to
educational records, as amended 11/21/96.

PA 01-173 An Act Concerning Revisions to the Education Statutes.

P.A. 16-67. An Act Concerning the Disclosure of Certain Education
Personnel Records, Criminal Penalties for Threatening in Educational
Settings and the Exclusion of a Minor’s Name from Summary Process

Complaints.

Policy adopted: September 17, 2003 CAPITOL REGION EDUCATION COUNCIL
| Policy revised: Hartford, Connecticut

Page 1 of 1



| PROPOSED REVISED POLICY 6142

Instruction
Basic Instructional Program

The basic instructional program shall be prescribed by the Council and be in accordance with the
law.

Although learning experiences offered students vary according to their individual needs and
abilities, the instructional program will be designed to give all students a common body of skills,
understandings, attitudes, and knowledge needed for living in a democratic society.

| An atmosphere fostering healthy growth shall prevail, recognizing ability, encouraging excellence
and providing a model of productive life to emulate.

| As required by law, the Council shall provide a program of instruction which shall include at least
the following subject matter as taught by legally qualified teachers: the arts; career education;
consumer education; health and safety, including, but not limited to, human growth and
development, nutrition, first aid, (including cardiopulmonary resuscitation training as provided by
law), disease prevention.— and cancer awareness. including., but not limited to., age and
developmentally appropriate instruction in performing self-examinations for the purposes of
screening for breast cancer and testicular cancer. community and consumer health, physical, mental
and emotional health, including youth suicide prevention, substance abuse prevention, and safety,
which shall include the safe use of social media and may include the dangers of gang membership,
and safety and accident prevention; instruction on acquired immune deficiency syndrome (AIDS);
language arts, including reading, writing, grammar, speaking and spelling; mathematics; physical
education; science; social studies, including, but not limited to, citizenship, economics, geography,
government and history; computer programming instruction; and in addition, on at least the
secondary level, one or more world languages (which may include American Sign Language,
provided it is taught by a qualified instructor under the supervision of a certified teacher) and
vocational education.

The implementation of these programs shall be the responsibility of the building principals.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes

10-16b Prescribed courses of study (as modified by P.A. 97-45 , P.A. 97-61,
and P.A. 15-94).

| 10-18 Courses in United States History, government and duties and
responsibilities of citizenship.

| 10-19 Teaching about alcohol, nicotine or tobacco, drugs, and acquired
immune deficiency syndrome. Training of personnel.

Page 1 of 2



6142

P.A 16-188. An Act Concerning Education Issues

Policy adopted: June 18, 2003 CAPITOL REGION EDUCATION COUNCIL
Policy revised: January 20, 2016 Hartford, Connecticut

Policy revised:

Page 2 of 2





















CREC
Council Meeting
3/15/17

Attachment H

Leadership Budget 2017-2018

The Capitol Region Education Council Leadership Budget is presented to the CREC Council at the March
meeting for first review and modification, if necessary. The Leadership Budget is adopted at the CREC Council
Annual Meeting in May.

Composition:
The CREC Leadership Budget represents the administrative and infrastructure costs associated with

the management and operation of CREC’s direct service programs. A primary goal of the leadership budget is to
minimize costs to CREC's districts. The 2017 - 2018 Leadership Budget is $7,182,995 and is $172,660 or 2.3%
less than the previous year's budget. The budgets below comprise the leadership budget:

Executive Offices

Office of Finance and Operations
Human Resources Office
Communications Office

Grants Office

S

Funding Sources:
Support for this budget is derived from the following sources:

1. Membership Dues
2. Interest Income
3.  Supervision and Support Revenue

2017 - 2018 Leadership Budget Highlights:

1. Containment of the Leadership Budget, typically, within a range of 1.5% - 3% of the total CREC budget.
This year's Leadership Budget represents 1.7% of the total CREC budget and 2.4% without capital projects.

2. Continued infrastructure support of Executive Offices, Office of Finance and Operations, Human Resources
Office, Communications and the Grants Office. Net decrease of 2.96 FTEs. This includes the reduction of
2.76 FTEs in professional and support staff positions in the Office of Finance and Operations and the Grants Office.

3. An ongoing consideration in the Leadership Budget is the support and management of growth of direct
services. The CREC operating budget is over $420 million and the workforce is approximately 2,400 employees.



Leadership Budget Overview
2016-17 Approved Budget Vs. 2017 -18 Requested Budget

2016-17 2017-18 Increase / (Decrease)
Expenditure Summary: Approved Requested $ Amount Yo
Executive Offices % 645,382 $ 639,836 $ (5,546) -0.9%
Office of Finance and Operations 4,263,737 4,102,824 (160,913) -3.8%
Human Resources Office 1,143,210 1,185,233 42,023 3.7%
Communications Office 1,030,988 1,034,073 3,085 0.3%
Grants Office 272,338 221,029 (51,309) -18.8%
Total Expenditures $ 7,355,655 $ 7,182,995 $ (172,660) -2.3%
Increase
2016-17 2017-18 (Decrease)
Revenue Summary: Approved Requested $ Amount %
Local Revenue:
Membership Dues 3 28,101 $ 28,000 $ (101) -0.4%
[nterest & Other Income 65,000 55,000 (10,000) -15.4%
Supervision 3,631,277 3,549,998 (81,279) -2.2%
Support 3,631,277 3,549,997 (81,280) -2.2%
State Revenue:
10-66 Grant - Unrestricted - - -
Total Revenue 7,355,655 7,182,995 (172,660) -2.3%

Surplus / (Deficit) $ 0 $ (0) $ (0) 0.0%




TOTAL LEADERSHIP BUDGET REQUEST
2016-17 Approved Budget Vs. 2017 -18 Requested Budget

2016-17 2017-18

Code Description Approved FTE Requested
100) SALARIES 3 4,520,347 $ 4,451,084
101 Administration 463,565 2.29 469,052
121 Non-Certified Admin. 1,058,875 7.55 1,080,238
123 Support Staff 944,164 18.47 980,881
129 Other Non-Certified 1,995,242 27.11 1,862,412
139 Other Temporary 58,500 58,500
(200) BENEFITS $ 1,202,768 $ 1,159,707
210 Health 609,620 55.42 608,536
220 FICA 317,065 311,427
250 Unemployment 29,382 26,707
260 Worker's Comp. 58,765 57,865
270 Retirement Benefits 187,936 155,172
(300) PROF/TECH SERVICES 3 406,307 $ 492,631
314 Computer Services 63,629 59,320
320 Professional Education Consultant 60,000 75,000
32200 External Staff Development 14,250 17,250
322 CREC Staff Development 6,928 55.42 6,561
331 Audit 67,000 65,000
333 Other Consultants 192,000 242,000
341 Clerical Services = 25,000
343 Auto Repair 2,500 2,500
400) PROPERTY SERVICES % 638,354 s 492,777
430 Maintenance & Repairs 500 500
441 Operating,/Facility 630,854 484,027
442 Equipment Rental 7,000 8,250
(500) OTHER PURCHASED SERV, 5 315,371 5 295,478
521 Property Insurance 11,848 11,521
522 Liability Ins, 4,425 4,407
523 Auto Insurance 34,450 28,450
531 Postage 36,000 37,500
532 Telephone 13,000 13,500
540 Advertising 37,550 39,750
550 Printing 37,498 13,400
551 Copying-Copy Ctr 56,150 56,500
581 Travel - All 45,950 51,950
591 Workshop Expenses 37,750 37,750
592 Other Purch. Serv, 750 750
600) SUPPLIES $ 54,121 $ 54,969
614 Other 44,650 42,498
616 Office Supplies 9,471 12,471
{700] PROPERTY $ 166,787 3 183,000
733 Equipment 26,750 18,000
739 Other Capital Outlay & Leases 140,037 165,000
(800) OTHER OBJECTS $ 51,600 3 53,350
810 Dues & Fees 51,600 53,350
TOTAL $ 7,355,655 $ 7,182,995
Dollar Increase / (Decrease) $  (172,660)
Percentage Increase / (Decrease) -2.3%

FTE

2.10
6.65
19.47
24.24

52.46

52.46

Increase / (Decrease)

$ Amount FTE %
$ (69,263) -1.5%
5,487 (0.19) 1.2%
21,363 (0.90) 2.0%
36,717 1.00 3.9%
(132,830) (2.87) -6.7%
" 0.0%
$ (43,062) -3.6%
(1,084) (2.96) -0.2%
(5,638) -1.8%
(2,676) -9.1%
(899) -1.5%
(32,765) -17.4%
$ 86,324 21.2%
(4,309) -6.8%
15,000 25.0%
3,000 21.1%
(368) (2.96) -5.3%
(2,000) -3.0%
50,000 26.0%
25,000 100.0%

- 0.0%
$  (145,577) -22.8%
- 0.0%
(146,827) -23.3%
1,250 17.9%
$ (19,893) -6.3%
(326) -2.8%
(19) -0.4%
(6,000) -17.4%
1,500 4.2%

500 3.8%

2,200 5.9%
(24,098) -64.3%
350 0.6%
6,000 13.1%

- 0.0%

e 0.0%

$ 848 1.6%
(2,152) -4.8%
3,000 31.7%

$ 16,213 9.7%
(8,750) -32.7%
24,963 17.8%

$ 1,750 3.4%
1,750 3.4%
$  (172,660) -2.3%



EXECUTIVE OFFICES BUDGET REQUEST
2016-17 Approved Budget Vs, 2017 -18 Requested Budget

#101 & #102
2016-17 2017-18
Code Description Approved FTE Requested
{100) SALARIES 8 417,071 452,732
101 Administration 417,071 2.00 452,732
200) BENEFITS b 76,180 48,367
210 Health 22,000 2.00 23,200
220 FICA 6,048 6,565
250 Unemployment 2,711 2,716
260 Worker's Comp. 5,422 5,886
270 Retirement Benefits 40,000 10,000
(300) PROF/TECH SERVICES 3 12,892 12,910
314 Computer Services 10,142 9,410
32200 External Staff Development - 750
32210 CREC Staff Development 250 2.00 250
343 Auto Repair 2,500 2,500
(400) PROPERTY SERVICES $ 119,000 101,000
441 Operating/Facility 112,000 93,500
442 Equipment Rental 7,000 7,500
(500] OTHER PURCHASED SERV. $ 11,988 16,827
522 Liability Ins. 1,288 1,277
523 Auto Insurance 1,600 1,600
531 Postage 200 200
532 Telephone 4,000 5,250
551 Copying-Copy Ctr 1,000 750
581 Travel - All 1,150 6,000
591 Workshop Expenses 2,750 1,750
(600) SUPPLIES $ 3,500 3,000
616 Office Supplies 3,500 3,000
(700) PROPERTY 3 1,750 1,500
733 Equipment 1,750 1,500
(800) OTHER OBJECTS $ 3,000 3,500
810 Dues & Fees 3,000 3,500
Total 3 645,382 639,836
Dollar Increase / (Decrease) ($5,546)
Percentage Increase / (Decrecase) -0.9%

FTE

2.00

2.00

2.00

Increase / (Decrease)

3 Amount FTE %Y
$ 35,661 8.6%
35,661  0.00 8.6%
$ (27,814) -36.5%
1,200  0.00 5.5%
517 8.6%
5 0.2%
464 8.6%
(30,000) -75.0%
$ 18 0.1%
(732) -7.2%
750 100.0%
= 0.0%
- 0.0%
$ (18,000) -15.1%
(18,500) -16.5%
500 7.1%
$ 4,839 40.4%
(11) -0.9%
- 0.0%
- 0.0%
1,250 31.3%
(250) -25.0%
4,850 421.7%
(1,000) -36.4%
3 (500) -14.3%
(500) -14.3%
$ (250) -14.3%
(250) -14.3%
$ 500 16.7%
500 16.7%
$  (5,546) -0.9%



#10300 - 10305

OFFICE OF FINANCE AND OPERATIONS BUDGET REQUEST
2016-17 Approved Budget Vs. 2017 -18 Requested Budget

2016-17 2017-18

Code Description Approved FTE Reguested
(100) SALARIES $ 2,464,288 $ 2,411,029
121 Non-Certified Admin. 620,998 3.65 633,604
123 Support Staff 596,379 12.00 607,495
129 Other Non-Certified 1,193,411 15.96 1,116,430
139 Other Temporary 53,500 53,500
(200] BENEFITS $ 673,481 $ 662,352
210 Health 347,710 31.61 344,868
220 FICA 188,518 184,444
250 Unemployment 16,018 14,466
260 Worker's Comp. 32,036 31,344
270 Retirement Benefits 89,199 87,230
(30Q) PROF/TECH SERVICES 3 353,493 $ 409,335
314 Computer Services 29,042 27,119
320 Prof/Ed Consultants 60,000 75,000
32200 External Staff Development 8,500 8,500
322 CREC Staff Development 3,951 31.61 3,716
331 Audit 67,000 65,000
333 Other Consultants 185,000 205,000
341 Clerical Services - 25,000
(400) PROPERTY SERVICES $ 337,938 5 187,930
441 Operating/Facility 337,938 187,180
442 Equipment Rental - 750
(500) OTHER PURCHASED SERV. 3 214,249 $ 194,330
522 Liability Ins. 8,501 8,180
531 Postage 32,750 27,750
532 Telephone 21,500 18,750
540 Advertising 4,000 4,500
550 Printing 27,750 31,750
551 Copying-Copy Ctr 29,498 7,150
581 Travel - All 32,000 28,000
591 Workshop Expenses 32,500 42,500
592 Other Purch. Serv. 25,750 25,750
(600) SUPPLIES $ 29,150 $ 25,498
616 Office Supplies 29,150 25,498
700) PROPERTY 3 153,037 5 175,500
733 Equipment 13,000 10,500
739 Other Capital Outlay & Leases 140,037 165,000
(800) OTHER OBJECTS $ 38,100 3 36,850
810 Dues & Fees 38,100 36,850
Total $ 4,263,737 $ 4,102,824
Dollar Increase / (Decrease) (160,913)
Percentage Increase / (Decrease) -3.8%

FTE

3.65
12.00
14.08

29.73

29.73

Increase / (Decrease)

$ Amount FTE %
$ (53,259) -2.2%
12,606 0.00 2.0%
11,116 0.00 1.9%
(76,981) (1.88) -6.5%
- 0.0%
$ (11,129) -1.7%
(2,842) (1.88) -0.8%
(4,073) -2.2%
(1,552 -9.7%
(691) -2.2%
(1,970) -2.2%
$ 55,842 15.8%
(1,923) -6.6%
15,000 25.0%
- 0.0%
(236) (1.88)  -6.0%
(2,000) -3.0%
20,000 10.8%
25,000 100.0%
$  (150,008) -44.4%,
(150,758) -44.6%
750 100.0%
$ (19,919) -9.3%
(321) -3.8%
(5,000} -15.3%
(2,750 -12.8%
500 12.5%
4,000 14.4%
(22,348 -75.8%
(4,000) -12.5%
10,000 30.8%
- 0.0%
$ (3,652) -12.5%
(3,652) -12.5%
3 22,463 14.7%
(2,500) -19.9%
24,963 17.8%
$ (1,250) -3.3%
(1,250) -3.3%
$ (160,913 -3.8%



HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE BUDGET REQUEST
2016-17 Approved Budget Vs. 2017 -18 Requested Budget

#104
2016-17
Code Description Approved
(100) SALARIES $ 776,253
121 Non-Certified Admin. 314,877
123 Support Staff 217,592
129 Other Non-Certified 238,784
139 Other Temporary 5,000
{200) BENEFITS 3 207,227
210 Health 104,170
220 FICA 59,383
250 Unemployment 5,046
260 Worker's Comp. 10,091
270 Retirement Benefits 28,536
(300} PROF/TECH SERVICES $ 19,948
314 Computer Services 11,764
32200 External Staff Development 5,000
3221C CREC Staff Development 1,184
333 Other Consultants 2,000
(400) PROPERTY SERVICES 3 75,250
430 Maintenance & Repairs 250
441 Operating/Facility 75,000
(500) OTHER PURCHASED SERV. 3 45,532
522 Liability Ins. 2,282
531 Postage 6,000
532 Telephone 5,000
540 Advertising 500
550 Printing 5,000
551 Copying-Copy Ctr 18,000
581 Travel - All 7,000
591 Workshop Expenses 1,000
592 Other Purch. Serv. 750
(600) SUPPLIES $ 7,000
616 Office Supplies 7,000
(700) PROPERTY $ 9,000
733 Equipment G,000
(800) OTHER OBJECTS $ 3,000
810 Dues & Fees 3,000
Total $ 1,143,210

Dollar Increase / (Decrease)
Percentage Increase / (Decrease)

FTE

2.00
4.47
3.00

9.47

9.47

2017-18
Requested

802,901
321,174
233,162
243,565

5,000

216,051
109,852
61,422
4,817
10,438
29,522

19,414
11,230
5,000
1,184
2,000

92,250
250
92,000

38,116
2,366
6,000
5,000

500
3,500

15,000
4,000
1,000

750

10,000
10,000

4,500
4,500

2,000
2,000

1,185,233

42,023
3.7%

FTE

2.00
4.47
3.00

9.47

9.47

Increase / (Decrease)

$ Amount FTE %
$ 26,648 3.4%
6,297 0.00 2.0%
15,570 0.00 7.2%
4,781 0.00 2.0%
- 0.0%
$ 8,825 4.3%
5,682 0.00 5.5%
2,039 3.4%
(228) -4.5%
346 3.4%
986 3.5%
5 (534) -2.7%
(534) -4.5%
- 0.0%
- 0.00 0.0%
- 0.0%
$ 17,000 22.6%
- 0.0%
17,000 22.7%
3 (7,416) -16.3%
84 3.7%
- 0.0%
- 0.0%
" 0.0%
(1,500} -30.0%
(3,000) -16.7%
(3,000) -42.9%
- 0.0%
- 0.0%
$ 3,000 42.9%
3,000 42.9%
$ (4,500) -50.0%
(4,500) -50.0%
$ (1,000) -33.3%
(1,000) -33.3%
$ 42,023 3.7%



COMMUNICATIONS OFFICE BUDGET REQUEST

2016-17 Approved Budget Vs. 2017 -18 Requested Budget

#105
2016-17 2017-18
Code Description Approved FTE Requested
{100) SALARIES $ 674,926 664,923
121 Non-Certified Admin. 123,000 1.00 125,460
123 Support Staff 91,583 2.00 96,297
129 Other Non-Certified 460,343 6.60 443,166
(200) BENEFITS B 195,365 197,142
210 Health 105,600 9.60 109,040
220 FICA 51,632 50,867
250 Unemployment 4,387 3,990
260 Worker's Comp. 8,774 8,644
270 Retirement Benefits 24,972 24,602
(300) PROF/TECH SERVICES 3 13,389 14,494
314 Computer Services 11,439 10,319
32200 External Staff Development 750 3,000
32210 CREC Staff Development 1,200 9.60 1,175
(400) PROPERTY SERVICES $ 90,250 93,750
430 Maintenance & Repairs 250 250
441 Operating/Facility 90,000 93,500
(500) OTHER PURCHASED SERV. $ 37,058 39,764
522 Liability Ins. 2,058 2,064
531 Postage 1,500 500
532 Telephone 4,500 7,500
540 Advertising 1,500 1,500
550 Printing 9,300 7,500
551 Copying-Copy Ctr 2,000 2,000
581 Travel - All 5,000 7,500
591 Workshop Expenses 200 200
592 Other Purch. Serv. 11,000 11,000
(600) SUPPLIES 3 12,000 14,000
616 Office Supplies 12,000 14,000
(700) PROPERTY 3 3,000 1,500
733 Equipment 3,000 1,500
(800) OTHER OBJECTS $ 5,000 8,500
810 Dues & Fees 5,000 8,500
Total $ 1,030,988 1,034,073
Dollar Increase / (Decrease) 3,085
Percentage Increase / (Decrease) 0.3%

1.00
2.00
6.40

9.40

9.40

Increase / (Decrease)

$ Amount FTE %

$ (10,003) -1.5%
2,460  0.00 2.0%

4,714 0.00 5.1%
(17,177) -0.20  -3.7%

5 1777 0.9%
3,440 -0.20 3.3%

(765) -1.5%

(397) -9.1%

(130) -1.5%

(370) -1.5%

$ 1,105 8.3%
(1,120) -9.8%
2,250 300.0%

(25) -0.20  -2.1%

$ 3,500 3.9%
. 0.0%

3,500 3.9%

$ 2,706 7.3%
6 0.3%

(1,000) -66.7%
3,000 66.7%

- 0.0%

(1,800) -19.4%

- 0.0%

2,500 50.0%

& 0.0%

- 0.0%

$ 2,000 16.7%
2,000 16.7%

$ (1,500) -50.0%
(1,500) -50.0%

$ 3,500 70.0%
3,500 70.0%

$ 3,085 0.3%



2016-17 Approved Budget Vs. 2017 -18 Requested Budget

#109

Code Description

100) SALARIES
101 Administration

123 Support Staff
129 Other Non-Certified

(200) BENEFITS
210 Health
220 FICA
250 Unemployment
260 Worker's Comp.
270 Retirement Benefits

(300) PROF/TECH SERVICES
314 Computer Services
32210 CREC Staff Development
333 Other Consultants

(400) PROPERTY SERVICES
441 Operating/Facility

(500) OTHER PURCHASED SERV.
522 Liability Ins.
532 Telephone
581 Travel - All

(600) SUPPLIES
616 Office Supplies

(800] OTHER OBJECTS
810 Dues & Fees
Total

Dollar Increase / (Decrease)

Percentage Increase / (Decrease)

GRANTS OFFICE BUDGET REQUEST

2016-17 2017-18

Approved FTE Reguested
187,808 $ 119,498
46,494  0.29 16,320
38,610 0.90 43,927
102,704 1.55 59,251
50,516 $ 35,794
30,140 2.74 21,576
11,485 8,130
1,221 717
2,442 1,553
5,229 3,818
6,585 $ 36,478
1,242 1,242
343 2.74 236
5,000 35,000
15,915 3 17,847
15,915 17,847
6,544 $ 6,441
544 441
2,500 2,500
3,500 3,500
2,471 $ 2,471
2,471 2,471
2,500 3 2,500
2,500 2,500
272,338 $ 221,029
$ (51,309)
-18.8%

0.10
1.00
0.76

1.86

1.89

Increase / (Decrease)

Amount FTE %
(68,310) -36.4%
(30,174) -0.19 -64.9%

5,317 0.10 13.8%
(43,453) -0.79  -42.3%
(14,722) -29.1%

(8,564) -0.88 -28.4%

(3,355) -29.2%

(504) -41.3%
(888) -36.4%

(1,411) -27.0%

29,893 454.0%

= 0.0%
(107) -0.85 -31.2%
30,000 600.0%
1,932 12.1%
1,932 12.1%
(102) -1.6%
(102) -18.8%

- 0.0%

- 0.0%

- 0.0%

- 0.0%

- 0.0%

- 0.0%
{51,309) -18.8%



	Agenda and 2-15-17 Minutes
	Attachments A, B, C, D, E 8
	Executive Director Report-Handouts
	Attachment F
	Attachment G 8
	Attachment H

